

City and County of San Francisco Meeting Minutes Budget and Finance Committee

City Hall 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place San Francisco, CA 94102-4689

Members: Matt Haney, Ahsha Safai, Gordon Mar

Clerk: Linda Wong (415) 554-7719

Wednesday, May 5, 2021

10:30 AM

Regular Meeting

Present: 3 - Matt Haney, Ahsha Safai, and Gordon Mar

The Budget and Finance Committee met in regular session through videoconferencing, and provided public comment through teleconferencing, on Wednesday, May 5, 2021, with Chair Matt Haney presiding. Chair Haney called the meeting to order at 10:36 a.m.

Remote Access to Information and Participation

In accordance with Governor Newsom's Executive Order No. N-33-20 declaring a State of Emergency regarding the COVID-19 outbreak and Mayor London N. Breed's Proclamation declaring a Local Emergency issued on February 25, 2020, including the guidance for gatherings issued by the San Francisco Department of Public Health Officer, aggressive directives were issued to reduce the spread of COVID-19. On March 17, 2020, the Board of Supervisors authorized their Board and Committee meetings to convene remotely (via Microsoft Teams) and will allow remote public comment via teleconference. Visit the SFGovTV website at (www.sfgovtv.org) to stream the live meetings, or to watch meetings on demand. Members of the public are encouraged to participate remotely via detailed instructions on participating via teleconference available at: https://sfbos.org/remote-meeting-call.

Members of the public may participate by phone or may submit their comments by email to: linda.wong@sfgov.org; all comments received will be made a part of the official record. Regularly-scheduled Budget and Finance Committee Meetings begin at 10:30 a.m. every Wednesday of each month. Committee agendas and their associated documents are available at https://sfbos.org/committees.

ROLL CALL AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

On the call of the roll, Chair Haney, Vice Chair Safai, and Member Mar were noted present. A quorum was present.

AGENDA CHANGES

There were no agenda changes.

REGULAR AGENDA

210308

[Expenditure Schedule Amendment - Retroactive - U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Emergency Solutions Grants Program - ESG-CV Round 2 Entitlement Grant - \$10,000,000]

Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution retroactively approving an amendment of the CARES Act Emergency Solutions Grants Coronavirus (ESG-CV) Round 2 Entitlement Expenditure Plan from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development in the amount of \$10,000,000 for operations and services for a congregate shelter for the period of July 1, 2020, through June 30, 2023.

03/23/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

04/21/21; CONTINUED TO CALL OF THE CHAIR. Heard in Committee. Speakers: Eric Shaw, Director (Mayor's Office of Housing and Community Development); Emily Gibbs (Human Services Agency); Leo Levenson (Department of Homelessness and Supportive Housing); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Trent Rhorer, Executive Director, Emily Gibbs, and Dariush Kayhan (Human Services Agency); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

210342

[Lease Amendment No. 3 - World Duty Free Group North America, LLP - Terminal 2 Newsstands, Coffee and Specialty Stores - Term Extension]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 3 to the Terminal 2 Newsstands, Coffee and Specialty Stores Lease No. 10-0232, between World Duty Free Group North America, LLP, as tenant, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, for an extension of the term for no later than June 30, 2023, with a condition that the Airport Director, at his sole and absolute discretion, may terminate earlier by providing six months' advance written notice, with no change to the current minimum annual guarantee, subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Lease, effective upon approval by the Board of Supervisors. (Airport Commission) 04/01/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/13/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Dyanna Volek (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

210372 [Lease Amendment - Smarte Carte, Inc - Airport Luggage Cart and Operating - Charge for Luggage Carts in the Federal Inspection Service Area]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 2 to the Airport Luggage Cart Lease and Operating Agreement No. 19-0069 between Smarte Carte, Inc., as tenant, and the City and County of San Francisco, acting by and through its Airport Commission, to change the luggage cart service in the Federal Inspection Service (FIS) area from a free service to a paid service, give the Airport Director authorization to reinstate the provision of free carts in the FIS and resume payment of the Annual Service Fee, at the Airport Director's discretion, and exercise the one three-year option for a total term of January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2025, to commence following Board approval. (Airport Commission)

04/09/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/20/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Dyanna Volek (Airport Department); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

210252 [Emergency Contract - A. Ruiz Construction Co. & Assoc., Inc - Steam Pipe Repair at Larkin and McAllister - Contract Amount \$275,271.70]

Resolution approving an emergency public work contract under Administrative Code, Section 6.60, between Public Works and A. Ruiz Construction Co. & Assoc., Inc. to make repairs on the Civic Center Steam Loop for a total contract amount of \$275,271.70. (Public Works) (Fiscal Impact)

03/08/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

03/16/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Jeremy Spitz (Public Works); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

210336 [Contract Amendment - Department of Energy Western Area Power Administration - Delivery of Low-Cost Power - Not to Exceed \$27,691,541]

Resolution approving Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the City and County of San Franciscc and the United States, through the Department of Energy Western Area Power Administration, for delivery of low-cost power to Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island, extending the term by 30 years for a total term of January 1, 2005, through December 31, 2054, and increasing the contract amount by \$7,691,541 for a total not to exceed amount of \$27,691,541 to commence upon Board approval. (Public Utilities Commission)

(Fiscal Impact)

03/25/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/06/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Ramon Abueg (Public Utilities Commission); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Chair Haney requested File Nos. 210385 and 210386 be called together.

210385 [Issuance of Development Special Tax Bonds - City and County of San Francisco Special Tax District No. 2020-1 (Mission Rock Facilities and Services) - Not to Exceed Aggregate Principal Amount of \$64,900,000]

Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of one or more series of Development Special Tax Bonds for City and County of San Francisco Special Tax District No. 2020-1 (Mission Rock Facilities and Services) in the aggregate principal amount not to exceed \$64,900,000 supplementing Resolution No. 196-20; approving related documents, as defined herein, including an Official Statement, a First Supplement to Fiscal Agent Agreement, Bond Purchase Agreement, and Continuing Disclosure Certificate: and determining other matters in connection therewith, as defined herein.

04/13/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Raven Anderson (Port); Anna Van Degna (Office of the Controller); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); Rebecca Benassini (Port); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

<u>210386</u>

[Pledge Agreement Related Documents - CCSF Infrastructure Financing District No. 2 (Port of San Francisco) Sub-Project Areas I-1 through I-13 - Special Tax Bonds - CCSF Special Tax District No. 2020-1 (Mission Rock Facilities and Services)]

Sponsor: Mayor

Resolution approving certain documents and actions related to a Pledge Agreement by City and County of San Francisco (CCSF) Infrastructure Financing District No. 2 (Port of San Francisco) and special tax bonds for City and County of San Francisco Special Tax District No. 2020-1 (Mission Rock Facilities and Services); and determining other matters in connection therewith, as defined herein. (Fiscal Impact.)

04/13/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Raven Anderson (Port); Anna Van Degna (Office of the Controller); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); Rebecca Benassini (Port); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Chair Haney requested File Nos. 210373 and 210374 be called together.

210373 [Contract Amendment - San Francisco New Deal - Feeding Services for Alternative Shelter Locations - Not to Exceed \$18,990,675]

Resolution approving a contract amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and San Francisco New Deal, for feeding services for Alternative Shelter locations, to extend the contract term by twelve months for a total term of May 18, 2020, through May 17, 2022, and to increase the contract amount by \$9,917,050 for a total not to exceed amount of \$19,834,100 to commence on May 18, 2021. (Human Services Agency)

(Fiscal Impact)

04/12/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/20/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Thomas McClain (Human Services Agency); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE to reduce the total not-to-exceed amount by \$843,425, from \$19,834,100 to \$18,990,675, and to request the Human Services Agency to report back to the Board of Supervisors in six months on the status of the program services. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Resolution approving a contract amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and San Francisco New Deal, for feeding services for Alternative Shelter locations, to extend the contract term by twelve months for a total term of May 18, 2020, through May 17, 2022, and to increase the contract amount by \$9,073,625 for a total not to exceed amount of \$18,990,675 to commence on May 18, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

210374 [Contract Amendment - SMG Food and Beverage LLC - Feeding Services for Alternative Shelter Locations - Not to Exceed \$16,807,483]

Resolution approving a contract amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and SMG Food and Beverage LLC, for feeding services for Alternative Shelter locations, to extend the contract term by twelve months for a total term of May 18, 2020, through May 17, 2022, and to increase the contract amount by \$9,479,817 for a total not to exceed amount of \$18,959,634 to commence on May 18, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

04/12/21; RECEIVED FROM DEPARTMENT.

04/20/21; RECEIVED AND ASSIGNED to Budget and Finance Committee.

Heard in Committee. Speakers: Thomas McClain (Human Services Agency); Severin Campbell (Office of the Budget and Legislative Analyst); Anne Pearson (Office of the City Attorney); provided an overview and responded to questions raised throughout the discussion.

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be AMENDED, AN AMENDMENT OF THE WHOLE BEARING NEW TITLE, to reduce the total not-to-exceed amount by \$2,152,151, from \$18,959,634 to \$16,807,483, and to request the Human Services Agency to report back to the Board of Supervisors in six months on the status of the program services. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

Resolution approving a contract amendment between the City and County of San Francisco and SMG Food and Beverage LLC, for feeding services for Alternative Shelter locations, to extend the contract term by twelve months for a total term of May 18, 2020, through May 17, 2022, and to increase the contract amount by \$7,327,666 for a total not to exceed amount of \$16,807,483 to commence on May 18, 2021. (Human Services Agency) (Fiscal Impact)

Chair Haney moved that this Resolution be RECOMMENDED AS AMENDED. The motion carried by the following vote:

Ayes: 3 - Haney, Safai, Mar

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business, the Budget and Finance Committee adjourned at the hour of 11:55 a.m.

N.B. The Minutes of this meeting set forth all actions taken by the Budget and Finance Committee on the matters stated, but not necessarily in the chronological sequence in which the matters were taken up.